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Standing Committee on Government Operations and Estimates

Monday, May 4, 2020

● (1400)

[English]
The Chair (Mr. Tom Lukiwski (Moose Jaw—Lake Centre—

Lanigan, CPC)): Welcome, colleagues. I call this meeting to order.

Colleagues, prior to getting into the introductory remarks, I
would like to point out to you that this week marks the 75th an‐
niversary of the liberation of the Netherlands and the victory in Eu‐
rope. The Prime Minister has asked that at two o'clock all Canadi‐
ans observe a moment of silence for our veterans who participated
in the two conflicts, and I would ask all of you to please join me in
a brief moment of silence before we start our meeting.

[A moment of silence observed]

Thank you, colleagues, and thanks to Mr. Kusmierczyk who
brought this to my attention.

Colleagues, this is meeting number nine of the House of Com‐
mons Standing Committee on Government Operations and Esti‐
mates. Pursuant to the order of reference of Saturday, April 11,
2020, the committee is studying the government’s response to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Before we start, I would like to announce that the next meeting
of this committee will be Friday, May 8, from 11 a.m. to 1 p.m.
eastern time. The schedule for the meetings next week has not yet
been published, but it has been agreed upon by the whips. The clerk
will be sending out a notice of next week's meetings very shortly.

Lastly, in terms of instructions, we will be having 15 minutes of
discussion about future witnesses at the conclusion of today's meet‐
ing. Since we have to conclude by 4 p.m. sharp, I will be drawing
this meeting to a conclusion by 3:45 this afternoon. Also, col‐
leagues, I would like you to know that the officials from the TBS
and the Department of Finance have some very, very brief opening
statements and so we will be devoting the entire two hours with all
of the witnesses here today to questions from committee members.

Colleagues, you are all aware of what we need to do, having par‐
ticipated in these virtual meetings over the last number of the
weeks, but for the benefit of our witnesses I would like to remind
you of a couple of quick facts if you haven't participated in virtual
meetings before.

Wait until you are recognized before you speak. Make sure that
when you are speaking you unmute your microphones or we will
not be able to hear you. If you are going to be speaking in English,
please, in the interpretation bar at the bottom of your screens, click
on the English channel. Conversely, if you are speaking in French,

click on the “French” button. If you use the “floor” button, you will
be able to speak in both official languages, but I suggest that if you
are switching from one language to the other, you pause just for a
moment to allow our interpreters to catch up.

Also, on the subject of interpretation, I would ask that all those
speaking today speak slowly and clearly so that our interpreters can
translate effectively and accurately.

Colleagues, before we get started, I ask, particularly those of you
who are new to this committee, that you click on the grid at the top
right of your screen. That will take you to gallery view and you will
be able to see all participants in this meeting on one screen.

We will begin our meeting.

I will ask Mr. Purves from the Treasury Board Secretariat for any
opening comments he may have, followed by officials from the De‐
partment of Finance. We'll then go directly into our questions from
committee members.

Mr. Purves, the floor is yours.
● (1405)

Mr. Glenn Purves (Assistant Secretary, Expenditure Manage‐
ment Sector, Treasury Board Secretariat): Thank you, Chair.

Actually, I don't have an opening statement to give. We'd be hap‐
py to just go directly to questions by members and to statements by
our Finance colleagues.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

We'll now go to the Department of Finance.
Mr. Andrew Marsland (Senior Assistant Deputy Minister,

Tax Policy Branch, Department of Finance): Mr. Chair, I am the
senior assistant deputy minister of the tax policy branch at Finance.
Let me make some very brief opening remarks.

First, thank you to the committee for the invitation to appear to‐
day to answer questions.

As you know, the department has been busy supporting the gov‐
ernment's economic response plan, and I think as the committee is
also aware, we table, on a bi-weekly basis, a report on that plan
with the Standing Committee on Finance. I'm sure committee mem‐
bers have access to that report, so I won't go through the details of
it, but I'll just say that it covers many of the measures of direct sup‐
port, liquidity support and support for specific sectors.

We'd be happy to answer any questions the committee may have
today. Thank you.
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The Chair: Thank you very much. We'll now go directly to
questions.

We will start with Mr. McCauley for six minutes, please.
Mr. Kelly McCauley (Edmonton West, CPC): Welcome, ev‐

eryone. It's good to see you. I'll start my questions with Treasury
Board, please.

Mr. Purves, could you update us on the estimates process? What
are the plans for the spring estimates?

Mr. Glenn Purves: Certainly, and just in terms of when we step
back, let's take it in two chunks. The first part is the main estimates.
As you know, those were tabled—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I'm sorry, but could you be as brief as
possible?

Mr. Glenn Purves: That's fine.

There was a recent motion that required us to table another ap‐
propriation act for main estimates in June and then a final one in
December. For main estimates, our plan normally is that we trans‐
act in two appropriation acts. This year, we'll be transacting in three
appropriation acts. We will be tabling an appropriation act in June
that will provide funding until December, and then the final in De‐
cember for the rest of the year.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Does the government plan to use the GG
warrants authority that is provided for in Bill C-13?

Mr. Glenn Purves: As you know, from March 13, in terms of
the motion that was concluded and the change in the FAA, GG war‐
rants can be used during a period when Parliament is adjourned—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Oh, I know they can be used, but are there
plans to use them right now?

Mr. Glenn Purves: At this juncture, I can't comment. I don't....
It's very hard to see week by week whether there is an intention to
do so. The only thing I will say is that we are planning—on just
part of your last question—alongside providing for full mains sup‐
ply, to have tabling of supplementary estimates (A) as well.
● (1410)

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Okay.
Mr. Glenn Purves: [Technical difficulty—Editor] revisiting do‐

ing that in June.
Mr. Kelly McCauley: I'm going to move on.

What standing do the departmental plans have in the current en‐
vironment?

Mr. Glenn Purves: When you say—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: They were tabled, obviously, just about a
month ago. Are these documents still valid?

Mr. Glenn Purves: They remain valid as it pertains to the plan‐
ning for the year as it pertains to the main estimates. In terms of
any updates and so forth through the year, typically those are re‐
ported through the departmental results reports.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Yes, so the accountability options are still
valid for the funding noted in the DPs, then.

Mr. Glenn Purves: I think the intention is to ensure that depart‐
mental plans best reflect plans—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: As fast as possible—

Mr. Glenn Purves: —for main estimates, but given the fact that
it has been an extraordinary year that we're entering, the depart‐
mental results reports that report on this current fiscal year would
take into account the extraordinary circumstances as well.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Is any or all of the COVID-19 spending
undergoing the usual Treasury Board approval process?

Mr. Glenn Purves: In any instance where Treasury Board in‐
volvement is required or there are programs or policies pertaining
to the spending, Treasury Board, and through TBS, has been in‐
volved with respect to ensuring that authorities are in place. There's
nothing that's been approved that is proceeding, and where it has
required a TB authority to be considered or TB to consider it, it has
not been considered.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Is any spending, then, going through that
hasn't gone through the Treasury Board oversight process of any of
the announced COVID spending?

Mr. Glenn Purves: Well, if you take a step back, there has been
an extraordinary amount of measures. When you look at what
Canada—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: [Inaudible—Editor] that.

Mr. Glenn Purves: Well, it's in different categories. If you look
at the Canada emergency response benefit and the Canada emer‐
gency wage subsidy, they have self-sustaining pieces of legislation,
so as a consequence, a lot of the terms and conditions pertaining to
those programs have already been approved in statutes, right?

If there's an augmentation to existing programming and it re‐
quires a consideration by TB, it has it. If it requires a consideration
or a change in authorities that the minister has authority for, then
they are reflected there.

I guess the point is that, despite the fact that we face an unprece‐
dented period, the substantive roles of the TB minister and TBS
have really not changed.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Okay. What plans have you put in place
for any added controls or new controls to oversee the spending?

Mr. Glenn Purves: In terms of overseeing the spending, in
terms of consideration—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: New controls.

Mr. Glenn Purves: From the comptrollership standpoint, I know
the comptroller general has been working closely with departments
to ensure that in terms of reporting and how it's being teed up for
public accounts—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I just have time for a very quick question.

With regard to Treasury Board, have you been in contact with the
Auditor General for their subsequent role for the oversight?

Mr. Glenn Purves: As you know, under—
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The Chair: You have about 10 or 15 seconds, Mr. Purves. That's
all.

Mr. Glenn Purves: In the context of Governor General special
warrants where a motion from March 13 requested it, absolutely.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Thank you.
The Chair: Thank you very much.

We'll now go to Mr. Jowhari, for six minutes, please.
Mr. Majid Jowhari (Richmond Hill, Lib.): Thank you, Mr.

Chair.

Welcome, department officials.

I'm going to pick up where my colleague Mr. McCauley left off
and ask for bit more unpacking of that approval process.

As we all know, the Treasury Board of Canada is responsible for
approving the terms and conditions for new transfer payments and
new programs. Specifically, as of March 20, the Treasury Board's
capacity for emerging spending, especially emergency spending....
For example, PSPC went from $15 million to $500 million.

Can I ask you, Mr. Purves, to unpack the whole approval process
and shed some light on the fact that some of these policies and
spending are evolving? We add $500 here, and a couple of days lat‐
er we add another thousand for a specific group.

Do these require constant coming back and revisiting, approval,
and all of that?
● (1415)

Mr. Glenn Purves: It's a mixed question for both us and Fi‐
nance.

Alison, do you want me to start?
Mr. Majid Jowhari: I was hoping you'd say that.
Mr. Glenn Purves: What I can say from our vantage point at

Treasury Board.... Again, you have to remember that when we talk
about spending authority—the ability to actually spend dollars—a
lot of the legislation that has already been passed in Bills C-13,
C-14 and C-15 provides for that authority. There is additional infor‐
mation—details and pieces of legislation—that also provides the
policy and the program authorities pertaining to the actual spending
of this funding.

In circumstances where an existing program or transfer payment
is being augmented, or in any other context, Treasury Board looks
at it from the standpoint of the policy, the program authorities and
the operational authorities to make sure that if there's anything in
their line of sight that they need to consider with respect to what
has been put on the table in terms of the spending, they will take
that into account. Treasury Board meetings take place in order to
examine these issues and approve them, but only where needed and
where there are gaps.

There are also considerations from many of these programs
where ministers themselves have authorities to authorize and make
adjustments. In those instances, the Treasury Board Secretariat
works closely with the departmental community to ensure that it's
done on a legal basis so that it reflects the legal mandate as set out.

Again, there are lots of programs and lots of initiatives that are
being supported. The Treasury Board role is about ensuring that
from a policy standpoint, from a program authority standpoint, it's
to the code.

Alison, do you want to—?

Mr. Majid Jowhari: Go ahead.

Ms. Alison McDermott (Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,
Economic and Fiscal Policy Branch, Department of Finance):
Hi. This is Alison McDermott from the Department of Finance.

I agree with everything you heard Glenn say and will add that, as
he mentioned, that quite a bit of the authority for this funding under
the emergency response plan is coming from the statutory authority,
and that, of course, has all been approved by Parliament.

I'll just note, I think as Andrew did, that the Minister of Finance
is presenting regularly to the finance committee on how the govern‐
ment is implementing these elements of the response plan. In fact,
although I think we are required to report only on certain parts of
that act, Bill C-13, we are reporting on all elements of the plan. It's
something that we're going to continue to do.

Mr. Majid Jowhari: Thank you.

I will switch and go to a very specific constituent-based question
that was put to me.

We have about 5,000 small businesses in Richmond Hill. A lot of
those small businesses are working with landlords to be able to se‐
cure their premises so they can do their business. From the feed‐
back we are getting, a lot of landlords are not embracing the rent
subsidy program being proposed by the government. Some of them
don't have mortgages against that land, so they don't qualify.

How is that being taken care of? Are there any amendments or is
any consideration being given to this that you could shed some
light on?

Either Ms. McDermott or Mr. Marsland can comment.

Ms. Leah Anderson (Assistant Deputy Minister, Financial
Sector Policy Branch, Department of Finance): I can take it.

The Chair: If I may, Ms. Anderson, we only have about 20 sec‐
onds left. If you are unable to complete your full answer in 20 sec‐
onds, I suggest that you provide a written response through the
clerk to our committee members.

I will give you 20 seconds, please.

● (1420)

Ms. Leah Anderson: We are continuing to flesh out the program
design. We are hearing the comments made by folks. That opportu‐
nity will be available to property owners without mortgages; that's
very clear in the mechanisms being designed so they can also apply
as well to mortgage property owners.
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The Chair: Thank you very much.

We will now go to Madame Vignola.
[Translation]

Ms. Vignola, you have six minutes.
Mrs. Julie Vignola (Beauport—Limoilou, BQ): Good after‐

noon. I'd like to ask a few questions.

I hope that you're already looking ahead. That's what my ques‐
tions presuppose.

Of the measures already in place, which ones will need to be ex‐
tended or modified in order to promote economic recovery and the
employment connection?

My question is for an official from the Treasury Board or the De‐
partment of Finance.

Ms. Alison McDermott: I can try to answer your question.
Mrs. Julie Vignola: Thank you.
Ms. Alison McDermott: Good afternoon. I'm Alison McDer‐

mott. I'm an associate assistant deputy minister at the Department
of Finance.

We find that it's early to decide to extend the measures. This is an
extraordinary crisis. The support that the government has provided
is very important. We hope that economic activity will resume. Of
course, should the government decide to extend the measures in the
coming months, it would be in a position to do so. However, it's a
little early to decide that now.

Mrs. Julie Vignola: Okay.

Among the existing measures, are there any that could be modi‐
fied to promote recovery and the employment connection?

Ms. Alison McDermott: It's true that we'll have to consider
these aspects. It's difficult to give information on it at the moment,
but they are important considerations.

Mrs. Julie Vignola: We're experiencing something out of the or‐
dinary. The last pandemic was 100 years ago. We realize that there
are positive impacts on the environment, especially when it comes
to air quality.

Does the government intend to take steps to use the current cir‐
cumstances—which are sad, but which we still have to face—to en‐
sure a viable and responsible economic transition, both ecologically
and socially?

If that's the case, how much might such a transition cost?
Ms. Alison McDermott: That's a very good question.

We're thinking about the next step. Right now, our priority is to
provide support to people who have lost their jobs or who can't
work. We want to stop the transmission of the virus. That's why
we're focusing on that.

In the coming months, we hope to be in a situation where eco‐
nomic stimulus will be necessary. At that time, we could consider
the measures you mentioned, including promoting investment in
the economy of the future, a more sustainable economy.

Mrs. Julie Vignola: Okay.

Last week, we talked about business subsidies, and I'd like to dis‐
cuss that further. There was some waffling: we said that companies
using tax havens were being given subsidies, then we said the op‐
posite.

So I'd like to know where we stand. Are we giving subsidies to
companies using tax havens? If that's the case, why aren't we stop‐
ping it? Do we have the names of these companies to tell them that
we don't approve of this unethical practice? Are we there yet? If
not, is there a problem that would explain why?

● (1425)

[English]

Mr. Andrew Marsland: The whole issue of tax evasion and tax
avoidance is one on which the government has taken a number of
important steps. Probably most importantly, recognizing that this is
truly an international challenge, we work closely with the OECD
and others in building an international architecture that helps us
deal with base erosion and profit shifting. The government has in‐
vested significant amounts over the past number of years and in re‐
cent budgets in bolstering CRA's capacity to address aggressive tax
planning.

When you look at the specific measures such as the wage sub‐
sidy, in particular, this is about ensuring that employers can keep
staff on, can rehire staff, and so on. That's really the objective here.
One doesn't preclude the other in the sense that the objective is to
preserve jobs, preserve employment, and to position the economy
to revive after the crisis. That doesn't mean there aren't important
steps being taken to address inappropriate tax avoidance.

The Chair: Mr. Marsland, unfortunately, I'm going to have to in‐
terrupt you there, because we're completely over time.

We will go now to our next intervention, from Mr. Green, for six
minutes, please.

Mr. Matthew Green (Hamilton Centre, NDP): Thank you very
much, Mr. Chair.

For the benefit of those who might be watching at home, I'll just
explain that the emergency response benefit, the CERB, pro‐
vides $500 per week for up to 16 weeks to workers, including self-
employed workers, who have involuntarily stopped working due to
COVID-19. The government estimates that this program will
cost $35 billion. On April 15, the government announced amend‐
ments to the CERB that will allow recipients to earn $1,000 per
month, and will expand access to some workers and seasonal work‐
ers who have exhausted their employment insurance benefits. How‐
ever, we know, from I believe it was last week or so at the Standing
Committee on Finance, there are a lot of people who are still left
out of this program.

In the design of these means-based, tested programs, when you
are proactively determining and identifying who is eligible for
them, can you comment on who's left out?

The time is ticking.

The Chair: Mr. Green, could you direct your question to a spe‐
cific witness?
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Mr. Matthew Green: It is to whoever is responsible for direct‐
ing the program. I believe it's Mr. Marsland, if he's tax policy, or
whoever is responsible for the CERB.

Ms. Alison McDermott: I can say a few words, and I think my
colleague Suzy McDonald might want to add to what I have to say.

In terms of general design principles, the government tried to
move quickly with its response, recognizing that it was important to
get support out the door to those who needed it most. It has very
much been focused on supporting those most affected by the crisis,
and that led to the decision to develop the CERB, which is, of
course, for folks who have lost their jobs or are unable to work.

Since introducing the first tier of measures, the government has
been looking at filling gaps and expanding access, as you've noted,
to EI exhaustees and others. That work continues. Our sense is that
we have a good deal of support out there that is very generous by
international standards in the level of support being provided to
them.

Suzy might want to add a little more on other groups. I know
we've added support for students recently, not through the CERB
but other mechanisms. There has been a lot of support for other
vulnerable members of the population, so I'll see if she wants to add
anything to that.

Mr. Matthew Green: In addition, maybe she can provide us
with what the current projections are for the cost of the CERB.

Ms. Suzy McDonald (Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,
Federal-Provincial Relations and Social Policy Branch, Depart‐
ment of Finance): Sure. Adding to what Alison has said, we have
evolved the policy of the CERB over time to ensure that it meets a
broader range of people, including allowing people drawing down
dividends to use that as their $5,000 of income. We've extended it
to EI seasonal workers who've exhausted their benefits. They are
now able to draw from their benefits and still have some income of
up to $1,000. We continue to make changes with parental and ma‐
ternity leave, and medical/disability leave [Technical difficulty—
Editor].
● (1430)

The Chair: Excuse me, Madam McDonald, I know that for my
side your testimony is very difficult to hear.

Mr. Green, are you able to hear clearly or is it difficult for you?
Mr. Matthew Green: Not as much. I'm just really cautious of

the six minutes that I have. I want to make sure I claim my time.
The Chair: Sure, you'll have extra time for my intervention.

Madam McDonald, if you could try to please speak slowly and
clearly, that might assist our translation.

Ms. Suzy McDonald: I will try my best. I won't repeat what I
just said. Hopefully, you've heard most of it.

I'm saying that we are continuing to evolve the program. The
CERB is not intended to meet the needs of everyone. It was intend‐
ed to be used as a complement to the existing systems.

In addition to the CERB, there are a number of other programs
we have put in place including, as Alison noted, new supports for
students. We're supporting vulnerable populations through other

programs, including for people living in homelessness, and provid‐
ing additional support to not-for-profit organizations to help meet
the needs of vulnerable Canadians.

Perhaps just moving on to the last question, which was on the
overall costing [Technical difficulty—Editor].

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Paul Cardegna): Mr. Chair,
the interpretation's had to stop. We can't hear Ms. McDonald. I'm
sorry.

The Chair: All right. We'll take a temporary suspension.

Mr. Green, don't worry. We'll make sure we add time to your in‐
tervention while our technicians try to clear up the sound quality.

Mr. Matthew Green: Shall I proceed with other questions, per‐
haps, that other members might be able to pick up?

The Chair: That's a great idea. If you have other questions for
different witnesses, please go ahead.

Mr. Matthew Green: Sure.

To whomever would like to pick this up, we've heard today from
Alison that we wanted to make sure that the government got the
money out the door as fast as it possibly could. I couldn't agree
more. Certainly, we've been calling for universally applied benefits,
avenues that would put money into the pockets of Canadians as
quickly as we possibly can.

I'm sure that there must have been a consideration for a basic an‐
nual income, notwithstanding the fact that every step along the way,
every policy that's put forward, there seem to be people who are left
behind. What would be the net cost, after taxes, of providing a min‐
imum basic income for all adult Canadians?

Mr. Andrew Marsland: Perhaps I could take that one, Mr.
Chair.

That's a difficult question. I mean, you can look at it in different
ways. If you gave, say, $2,000 to the almost 30 million tax filers,
then the mathematics—I can't work that out in my head—it's an
awful lot every month if it were $2,000.

Really, my understanding of universal basic income is that it's
not just about sending an amount to every adult. It's about, essen‐
tially, a universal amount to every adult, but also a tax system that
targets that appropriately. In that context, while I appear to be
avoiding the question, it's very difficult to answer the question be‐
cause it goes very much to the design.

The first part of it, the payment to every adult in the country, ob‐
viously, is extraordinarily expensive. The net cost depends on the
ultimate design.
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Mr. Matthew Green: It just appears, and it's been very clear—
and I'm sure every MP who has a constituency office will tell
you—that for every announcement that has been made, there have
been people who have been systemically left out of this process. I
would agree that we need to get money into the pockets of every
Canadian as fast as we can, people who need it the most, people
who are here, struggling through this unprecedented time. It just
seems to me that we're still overburdening the bureaucracy with
complicated means testing when we have an opportunity to get that
out.

Mr. Chair, do you know how much time I have left in my ques‐
tioning?

The Chair: I've given you an extra 30 seconds, Mr. Green.
You're at about six minutes and 30 seconds now.

Mr. Matthew Green: Oh. I appreciate that. Thank you very
much. I guess I'll wait till the next round.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

We will now go into our second round, which has five-minute
durations. We will start with Mr. Aboultaif.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif (Edmonton Manning, CPC): Good morn‐
ing, everyone.

Mr. Marsland, I have a question for you. Usually, during good
economic times, the EI account claimed surpluses. What's the status
now of the EI account? Is it out of money? Is it exhausted, yes or
no? How much, if there are numbers that can be advised?

Mr. Andrew Marsland: With your permission, I'll turn that
question over to my colleague Alison.

Ms. Alison McDermott: Actually, I think maybe Suzy could
better speak to where we stand in terms of a government policy de‐
cision on the EI rate and the timing of any increases. I can certainly
say that with the difficulties in getting the EI system to function, as
most folks know, we have been using the CERB as a program to
support all EI-eligible people who are needing those basic supports,
and so the EI system, I think, has been relying on the CERB. I think
over the longer run we will be keeping track of the costs of those
expenditures, and to my understanding, the decision has not yet
been made about when that will be recouped.

I don't know, Suzy, if you're able to say a bit more.
● (1435)

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Do I understand that the EI account is ex‐
hausted now, yes or no?

Ms. Alison McDermott: It's not being used right now in the way
that it normally would be, because normally when people would be
unemployed they would go to the EI program and receive benefits
from the account. Because of the fact that's been suspended in
favour of providing those accounts through the CERB and because
individuals are able to get that from either CRA or Service Canada,
it's not a very good gauge right now of what's actually happening to
the EI account.

Looking at the labour force survey would probably give us a bet‐
ter sense of how the economy is doing.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: On the CERB account, a lot of people who
are ineligible are receiving payments. Why are some people who

are ineligible receiving money? What is the mechanism to ensure
that those who do not qualify do not receive money?

Ms. Alison McDermott: That's being done on an attestation ba‐
sis right now, but certainly the Canada Revenue Agency, which is
going to tax people on that benefit, may require proof from individ‐
uals in the future. It will be responsible for administering and en‐
forcing the provisions of the CERB.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: How many businesses that applied for
the $40,000 have received it? My understanding is that some of
them have received a portion of that already. Some are waiting to
see the remainder. Do you have any idea how many businesses
have applied, and how much money has been committed to that
specific program?

Mr. Marsland, maybe you can answer that.

Ms. Alison McDermott: Sorry—are you talking about the
Canada emergency wage subsidy or the business account?

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: It's the business account.

Ms. Alison McDermott: That would be my colleague Leah An‐
derson or Soren Halverson.

Ms. Leah Anderson: The question was how many have applied
for it?

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Yes.

Ms. Leah Anderson: There have been about 520,000 applicants
to date, about $20 billion worth.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: That's 520,000 applicants for $40,000. Is
that correct?

Ms. Leah Anderson: That's correct.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Okay. How much money have we spent so
far? Is there any idea? Is there anyone who can tell us, on all the
programs, how much money we have gone through?

Ms. Leah Anderson: For the small-business account alone,
about $20 billion in funds has been disbursed to date.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: In total for CERB and other programs, how
much money have we printed so far, to spend on all the programs
so far?

Ms. Leah Anderson: My colleague Alison might be able to give
you that answer.

Ms. Alison McDermott: Sorry, I don't have the number at my
fingertips. Let me see if I can find it in the last report. Obviously,
these are changing daily but I'll come back to you with that.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Okay, we would appreciate that.
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The next question is, if we continue to go on like this until the
fall, how much money do you think we will need to commit to to
hold us through this difficult time?

Ms. Alison McDermott: I'll just say that in terms of the package
itself that has been announced to date, it is quite a generous pack‐
age of $150 billion or so of direct support, $85 billion of liquidity
through the tax system, and very significant additional liquidity
support under the business credit availability program. This is not
the fiscal cost, but the financial value of those measures comes up
to more than $500 billion. It's a very big package and we're—
● (1440)

The Chair: Thank you very much. We're considerably over
time.

We'll now go to Monsieur Serré.
[Translation]

Mr. Serré, you have five minutes.
Mr. Marc Serré (Nickel Belt, Lib.): Thank you, Mr. Chair.

My first question is for the Department of Finance officials, and
it has to do with access to the Canada emergency response benefit
in my riding of Nickel Belt.

Could you tell me a little more about the support that has been
given recently specifically to seasonal workers and self‑employed
workers with respect to their eligibility for the Canada emergency
response benefit?

Ms. Suzy McDonald: With respect to the Canada emergency re‐
sponse benefit, we have designed the program to ensure that those
who have exhausted their employment insurance benefits by De‐
cember 29 can apply for and receive the Canada emergency re‐
sponse benefit, including seasonal workers.

We have also ensured that people can have up to $1,000 of em‐
ployment income without losing their benefits. As I was saying ear‐
lier—I don't know if you were able to hear me—we are still re‐
viewing and adjusting the program to ensure that people get the
support they need. However, the program isn't really designed to
support everyone. We have a number of programs that need to com‐
plement each other to support Canadians.

Mr. Marc Serré: Thank you.

My second question has to do with loans given by banks. Many
of my constituents in Nickel Belt are a little worried. They are won‐
dering if the banks are going to give the money out fast enough and
if the federal government has chosen the right intermediary.

At the Department of Finance, do you believe that the procedures
in place are rigorous enough to ensure that banks channel funds di‐
rectly to businesses?

Ms. Suzy McDonald: I believe my colleague Leah Anderson
will be able to answer your question.
[English]

Ms. Leah Anderson: The transmission was very choppy, so as I
understand it, you are wondering about the processes in place by
the banks to flow money to businesses and whether appropriate
controls are in place. I would say, yes, the funding that is being de‐

livered through the Canada emergency business account is being
delivered in conjunction with Export Development Canada, and we
work very closely with financial institutions to make sure that they
have appropriate policies and procedures in place to disburse the
funds appropriately.

Mr. Marc Serré: My other question is that because of
COVID-19, we have a lot of colleges, universities, a lot of the
provincial areas really hurting as far as—

The Chair: Mr. Serré, could I interrupt just for a second? Excuse
me, sir. I won't dock you any time for this.

Could please slow down your cadence, sir? The interpreters are
having a bit of a difficult time following.

Mr. Marc Serré: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

My next question is related to provincial support. We have
provinces, territories and municipalities that are really struggling
because of COVID-19. Is there any planned support from the feder‐
al government for the provinces? That is one question.

Second, has the federal government looked at removing the debt
ceiling for the territories?

Ms. Suzy McDonald: I didn't hear the last part of your question.
Has the federal government looked at removing what?

[Translation]

Mr. Marc Serré: I'm talking about borrowing limits in the terri‐
tories.

Ms. Suzy McDonald: All right. I'll answer first, then my col‐
league can round out my answer if she has anything to add.

[English]

The Government of Canada already provides significant provin‐
cial and territorial support on an ongoing basis. For example, in
2020-21, the federal government is providing $81.6 billion to
provinces and territories through our major transfers. In addition to
this, we provided a one-time funding payment of $500 million to
provinces and territories, and that was received on March 30.

We're working closely with the provinces and territories to really
understand their economic situation and also working with munici‐
palities, which, of course, fall under provincial jurisdiction, but
with whom we are having conversations to understand their needs.

With regard to some of the lending that's in place, perhaps Leah
could add some more.

● (1445)

The Chair: Thank you very much.

Now we'll go to Mrs. Block for five minutes, please.

Mrs. Kelly Block (Carlton Trail—Eagle Creek, CPC): Thank
you very much, Mr. Chair.

I thank our witnesses for joining us today.
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We know that Bill C-13 enacted the Public Health Events of Na‐
tional Concern Payments Act, which allows the government to
spend “all money required to do anything in relation to that public
health event of national concern”. They have that authority until
September 30.

I would note that the amount being spent by the government is
staggering.

While our focus in this meeting today has been on the cost of the
numerous income support programs for Canadians and businesses,
I'm interested in knowing how much is being spent by the Depart‐
ments of Health, PSPC, and, in particular, ISED on the procure‐
ment of personal protective equipment.

I would assume that the Department of Finance would be able to
provide us with some of those numbers.

The Chair: Mr. Marsland, or is there anyone there who—
Mr. Andrew Marsland: I am perhaps not the best person to

speak to this, but I will try to answer the question.

In our report to the finance committee, we outlined the amounts
dedicated to the areas the member alluded to. The report says that
the total amount is $4.4 billion. The largest amount there is for
funding to purchase personal protective equipment, but there is also
significant funding in there to assist the provinces and territories in
the COVID-19 response on a health basis, and support for medical
research into vaccine development.

I hope that helps.
Mrs. Kelly Block: That is $4.4 billion. Can you tell me how

much is actually being spent or what kind of funding is available
for manufacturers that are retooling right at this time to support our
fight against COVID-19?

Mr. Andrew Marsland: I don't have that information, but per‐
haps we can endeavour to find out what information is available
and provide it to the committee.

Mrs. Kelly Block: Okay, I would appreciate that very much.

Recent reports in the media have tagged our deficit at approxi‐
mately $252.1 billion this year. I know there are questions concern‐
ing the sustainability of the programs we have announced, legislat‐
ed and are now implementing.

Can you tell me how far the amount of money we have an‐
nounced and are willing to spend this year will take us in our fight
against COVID-19?

Ms. Alison McDermott: Sure, I can look at that.

As mentioned, the authorities in terms of direct support measures
come to approximately $150 billion. It really varies, measure by
measure, how long or over what period those are expected to be ex‐
pended.

Some of the big ones, like the Canada emergency response bene‐
fit, are available for a longer period of time. If you were on that
benefit early in March, I think it would expire within four months,
so we're looking at mid-June for that one. I think the CEWS goes
through to July, so they're staggered.

As I said before, it's a bit early to have a strong sense of which
ones and to what degree some of these may need to be extended. In
either case, we wouldn't expect that they would be used at the same
level or scope they're being used now. They're expected to be in
that —

● (1450)

The Chair: Thank you very much.

Unfortunately, Mrs. Block, we're completely out of time, but we
will have additional time in future rounds.

We will now go to Madam Ratansi.

Welcome back to our committee.

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi (Don Valley East, Lib.): Thank you very
much.

My questions are going to be directed to Finance.

I have a lot of small and medium-sized enterprises that are not
eligible to access the CEBA because they issued T4As rather than
T4s. When I look at the CRA definition of income, T4s, T4As, T5s,
all become income.

Could you give me the logic behind why these guys cannot ac‐
cess the CEBA, number one?

Number two, some sole proprietorships or enterprises are giving
themselves dividends. Even if they give themselves $20,000 worth
of dividends, they don't qualify for the CEBA. If you could give me
some of the logic behind it, I'd really appreciate it.

Thanks.

Ms. Leah Anderson: Since we launched CEBA, we've been tak‐
ing a good look at it and it is based on payroll. Since we launched
CEBA we have expanded the range of entities that are able to ap‐
ply, from $20,000 up to $1.5 million in payroll.

We are very aware of the issue you raised, that some did not
qualify, and we are taking a very close look at that to see what addi‐
tional supports are appropriate for those circumstances.

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi: If they issue a T4A, it is income, so what
do I tell them? Should I tell them that you're taking a look at it, or
what?

Ms. Leah Anderson: We are closely assessing the issue. We're
aware of the concerns and are trying to make the benefit available
to the widest range of small businesses that have these kinds of
fixed costs and need the extra support.

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi: Okay.
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My second question regards the rent relief. How is it working
with the provinces? I ask because certain small landlords don't have
any mortgages and don't think they should take advantage of this
commercial rent relief, so they don't give relief to their tenants.
What should we do about it? How do I convince my businesses to
stay open or to take advantage of this when the landlord is probably
not willing to take advantage of it?

Ms. Leah Anderson: Since the Prime Minister announced the
measure in late April, CMHC came up with further details on their
website last week. They have indicated on it that if a landlord does
not have a mortgage, they should contact CMHC to go through a
different mechanism. We are working on an alternative mechanism
for those who do not have mortgages.

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi: What is the province doing about those
who have mortgages, but do not wish to participate?

If we want to kickstart the economy, we know that we need to
keep these businesses alive and well, and these are small propri‐
etors like acupuncturists or massage therapists, a whole plethora of
these businesses. Is there any understanding we can give to these
businesses to say, here is something you can look at? I tell them to
negotiate with their landlord, but it's beyond federal control.

Ms. Leah Anderson: The federal government is doing this pro‐
gram in partnership with the provinces. We cost shared 75%-25%
with the provinces. As you said, it's very important for landlords
and their tenants to work together to find appropriate solutions.
This program will provide a real opportunity to provide the relief
that tenants need at this time. It is directed to tenants who have had
a 70% revenue decline—those who are most challenged in these
circumstances.
● (1455)

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi: Okay.

Now I come to the CERB. I have individuals, sole proprietors,
who did not pay themselves any wages, and now with COVID-19
they probably cannot show $5,000 in employment income. What do
they do? They have no income anymore.

Ms. Leah Anderson: I'll turn that question on CERB over to my
colleague.

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi: Okay.
The Chair: Because we are completely out of time, I would ask,

if you can, that you provide that answer to our committee members
in writing. You can give that to our clerk so that we can distribute
the response to all committee members.

Ms. Yasmin Ratansi: Thank you.
The Chair: Thank you, Madame Ratansi.

We will now go to two-and-a-half-minute interventions, starting
with Mr. Barsalou-Duval.

Mr. Barsalou-Duval.
[Translation]

Mr. Xavier Barsalou-Duval (Pierre-Boucher—Les Patri‐
otes—Verchères, BQ): Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

My first question is for the Department of Finance officials.

I've heard fairly frequently from seasonal workers who are afraid
they won't be able to access employment insurance or the CERB
this year. Changes have been made, but these workers are wonder‐
ing about next year. If their work season doesn't happen, if they
aren't able to pay into employment insurance or if they don't get
enough hours of work to receive employment insurance benefits,
does that mean they'll have to get through the winter without any
other income?

That raises an important question. I want to know if the Depart‐
ment of Finance has thought about it and if it will come up with a
solution soon.

Ms. Suzy McDonald: We're aware of this issue because we've
heard about it from many stakeholders. It's an issue of concern to
us. Our colleagues at Employment and Social Development Canada
are looking at it as well.

We can give you a full answer later.

Mr. Xavier Barsalou-Duval: Thank you.

My second question is also for the Department of Finance offi‐
cials, but it has a public policy and taxation aspect to it.

When someone has an income of more than $1,000, they aren't
entitled to the full CERB amount. Obviously, this measure was put
in place to ensure that people don't just go to work a few hours in
order to benefit from the CERB.

As the economy recovers and the lockdown ends, some people
may refuse to go to work or may have little incentive to return to
work. In some cases, employers won't need a full‑time employee
because the demand won't be great enough. Instead, the employer
may be looking to hire a part‑time employee.

Will changes be made to the CERB program to ensure that peo‐
ple don't lose everything?

We need to ensure that employers aren't understaffed and that
programs put in place to help employees aren't detrimental to them.

[English]

The Chair: Please give a very brief answer, if possible.

[Translation]

Ms. Suzy McDonald: We're looking into that situation. As far as
the CERB is concerned, we're hearing about what's working and
what isn't working so well. We're always reviewing the programs in
order to improve them.

[English]

The Chair: Thank you very much.

Mr. Green, the floor is yours.

Mr. Matthew Green: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
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We've heard quite compellingly that there has been work with
provinces and a 25%-75% split for commercial small business rent
relief. If we can work with the provinces to figure that out for small
businesses, why wasn't this extended to renters in the residential
market?

This is for the Department of Finance or whoever answered the
question around—

Ms. Leah Anderson: I can take that one.

Generally speaking, rent is an area of provincial jurisdiction. I
think the first question asked what the provinces are doing. Many
provinces have taken steps to provide rent relief for residential ten‐
ants. For example, in British Columbia there is quite an extensive
program, and others have one as well.

In this area for small businesses, given some of the greater sys‐
temic impacts, the Government of Canada made a decision to enter
into this partnership to fill a bit of the gap.
● (1500)

Mr. Matthew Green: That being said, we're hearing from mu‐
nicipalities. I'm a former city councillor. There are infrastructure
projects across the country that are split a third-a third-a third.

Would the federal government be willing to assume all construc‐
tion costs for any infrastructure that relates to stimulus funding as
we transition out of COVID and look to reopen and restart the
economy?

Ms. Leah Anderson: I'll turn that one over to my colleague,
Evelyn, but I think it's very early to say what we will do in a recov‐
ery. We are certainly looking at all options to restart on a solid foot‐
ing.

Over to you, Evelyn.
Ms. Evelyn Dancey (Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,

Economic Development and Corporate Finance Branch, De‐
partment of Finance): That is exactly the answer I would have
given. Certainly, infrastructure is one of the tried and tested stimu‐
lus levers. At an appropriate time we would be turning our minds to
such things that have worked in the past to stimulate the economy,
but we really still need to see our way through the current stabiliza‐
tion and restart activities.

Mr. Matthew Green: Okay, this is a bit of a strange one. I
picked up on this under part 8 of Bill C-13. The Minister of Finance
is basically allowed to establish a corporation or entity for the pur‐
poses of promoting stability in the financial system.

What is the purpose of the authority to establish a corporation or
entity to promote stability in the financial system?

The Chair: Unfortunately, while it's an excellent question, I'm
going to have to ask that the response be given in written form
through our clerk to our committee members because we're com‐
pletely out of time.

We'll be going now into the second round of questions for the
second hour, starting again with Mr. McCauley for six minutes,
please.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Thanks, Chair.

Ms. Anderson, I want to follow up on the question that Ms.
Ratansi had about the CEBA, and we heard the answer repeated
again on other issues: “We're looking at it, we're looking at it, we're
aware of it”. Will we actually have a response to these issues?
When will we actually see something, a change around the issues
that Ms. Ratansi brought up, regarding the CEBA for those who
have been blocked from receiving support? I'm not saying to you
specifically, but we have to do more than just say, “We're looking at
it, we're aware of that.”

When will we actually see a response?

Ms. Leah Anderson: I can assure you that it's very much front
of mind of the government in terms of responding to this question,
and we're working on it as we speak.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Okay, but you just repeated what I was
asking about. When will we have a response? It's not enough to tell
Canadians that “We're looking at it”, hand over heart. When will
we actually see a response to this, or will there not be a response to
it and we can move on to something else?

Ms. Leah Anderson: I will just reiterate that it is a very impor‐
tant question that we are examining.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: All right, thanks.

For Finance, the Bank of Canada and the PBO both published
updated economic forecasts. PBO has published its fiscal forecast.
When will we see Finance releasing theirs?

Ms. Alison McDermott: We are definitely starting the process
of looking at all of the scenarios for the economy. I think we would
note that even the Bank of Canada, in its last monetary policy out‐
look, did not come up with kind of a point estimate, and that's usu‐
ally what we use for the purpose of fiscal forecasting. A lot of pri‐
vate sector actors are out there with certain numbers for, you know,
Q2 and expecting some—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I'd like an answer to the question. When
will Finance be publishing something for that?

● (1505)

Ms. Alison McDermott: We're not able to give you a definitive
time frame at this point, but we're definitely looking at scenarios.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Thank you.



May 4, 2020 OGGO-09 11

Has Finance looked at scenarios, then, for bailouts or assistance
packages for specific industries such as the oil energy industry, the
hospitality industry, the airline industry? Have you started putting
numbers together for that? If not, have you got numbers put togeth‐
er on what the fallout will be if there is not assistance to those in‐
dustries?

Ms. Evelyn Dancey: I'll pick up from Alison.

Broad-based economic supports have been rolled out by the gov‐
ernment that are relevant to the vast proportion of Canadian busi‐
nesses, so the first effort was those responses of general applicabili‐
ty across government in lead portfolios for the last seven or eight
weeks now, in terms of the crisis. There has been quite detailed
work, engagement, outreach with stakeholders, by the lead portfo‐
lios and ministers, and there's quite a fair bit of sectoral intelli‐
gence-gathering and understanding around restart. There has been
an ongoing surveillance of gaps in the programs on general applica‐
bility as well, and any of the iterative improvements to those pro‐
grams have reflected that intelligence.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: You're using up my time.

I'm looking specifically for an answer. Has Finance put together
scenarios, considerations specifically for the airline industry, the
hospitality industry, the energy industry, to put together specific
support packages for them? If not, have they looked at the scenario
of what will happen to those industries and the economy if support
is not provided and they implode?

Ms. Evelyn Dancey: I suppose that in terms of what I was trying
to convey, though perhaps not succinctly, was that programs of gen‐
eral applicability are doing very much to support the sectoral chal‐
lenges that are arising, such as labour bills, for example, and just
general liquidity. I was going to offer—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: [Technical difficulty—Editor] liquidity is
the issue. None of these programs are addressing that. My question
again goes back to that. Is Finance looking at scenarios for such
support?

Ms. Evelyn Dancey: About two weeks ago, the government did
announce a package of small business and sectoral assistance mea‐
sures, which included a few targeted measures for the energy sec‐
tor. You might be familiar with those already.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Yes.

Ms. Evelyn Dancey: Very briefly, they included $1.72 billion in
support—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I'm going to move on, please.

Has Finance done any forecasting models with new revenue
sources, such as higher personal, higher income or corporate taxes
and changes to the GST?

Ms. Alison McDermott: I'm sorry. Are you asking if we're con‐
templating increases in these taxes at this point?

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Have you done forecasting models?
Ms. Alison McDermott: Well, generally over the year we do

this kind of analysis, but nothing of late. Nothing of that nature is
being contemplated.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Thanks very much.

The Chair: We'll now go to Mr. Drouin, please, for six minutes.

[Translation]

Mr. Francis Drouin (Glengarry—Prescott—Russell, Lib.):
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'd like to thank all the witnesses present for our virtual commit‐
tee meeting.

My first question is for the witnesses from the Treasury Board
and the Department of Finance. As you know, when a government
program is announced, there is usually a long consultation process.
In this case, we didn't have an opportunity for that consultation. So
I'd like to know how you reorganized your organization and how
you worked with other departments to deliver the benefits.

We recognize that the benefits aren't perfect, which is why the
consultation is important. I know that opposition members and oth‐
er stakeholders across Canada have said that self‑employed workers
and people who collect a non‑eligible dividend, for example, have
been forgotten.

Can you tell me a little bit about how you proceeded?

Ms. Alison McDermott: Thank you for your question.

[English]

Just to outline the way that most of the spending proposals get
examined within the Department of Finance, we do receive them
from line departments. These are the departments that are closest to
the industry groups, stakeholders and NGOs and so on, so they are
in constant communication with those segments of civil society or
the private sector in terms of what their needs are. We get proposals
from them. They tend to be looked at by the Department of Fi‐
nance, advice is provided to the minister and the Prime Minister
and, of course, decisions are taken by them. We work with TBS in
order to implement those measures.

I should note that of course measures relating to the financial
sector policy and to direct taxation are internally generated propos‐
als, but we have a lot of.... Andrew could talk more to this, as could
Leah. We hear from and have been working quite a bit with the pri‐
vate sector in the development of those measures.

Maybe Leah could tell you a bit more at this point. I know that
there has been a lot of collaboration with the financial sector and
other members of the private sector in the development of some of
the financial measures.
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● (1510)

Ms. Leah Anderson: I can start with the financial measures that
we announced at the beginning of the crisis. We worked very col‐
laboratively with the financial sector agencies, such as the Bank of
Canada, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions
and the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation. You may be aware
that a number of measures were announced, and those were based
on what we were hearing from the business sector in terms of what
was needed and from financial institutions as well. For example,
the Bank of Canada put in place a number of facilities to promote
market functioning and also to promote the liquidity of financial in‐
stitutions.

Mr. Andrew Marsland: I can add to that at this time, Mr. Chair.
The Chair: Certainly. Please go ahead.
Mr. Andrew Marsland: It's a very interesting question. I'd begin

by saying, there's no playback, obviously this kind of crisis is un‐
precedented, and so on. If we take one example, the wage subsidy,
we developed that obviously very quickly. Normally one would de‐
velop that over the basis of many months of work and consultation.
For a timely and relevant response, that's not possible. We did ben‐
efit from a lot of engagement in between releasing the first back‐
grounder and the passage of the legislation, and continued to bene‐
fit from input from industry associations, from specific firms, from
parliamentarians, from a whole range of people we talked to in a
very compressed time frame. I think the important thing is to listen
and to adapt as we get that input. I think we have done that so far.
No doubt we'll continue to get input on these programs.
[Translation]

Mr. Francis Drouin: Thank you very much for your answers.

Mr. Chair, I don't know if I have enough time left to get back to
my questions.
[English]

The Chair: You have about a minute and a half, Mr. Drouin.
[Translation]

Mr. Francis Drouin: I had said that it seems that many en‐
trepreneurs don't qualify for the Canada emergency business ac‐
count, the CEBA, and that they don't want to record non‑eligible
dividends. I know that these dividends can be counted for the
Canada emergency response benefit, but not for access to
the $40,000 emergency loan from the CEBA. You're working hard
on this issue, and I hope we can find a solution as soon as possible.
[English]

The Chair: A brief answer, please. We have about 30 seconds.
Ms. Leah Anderson: I want to reiterate that we really hear the

voice of the committee today in terms of the need to deal with that
issue for small business.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

We'll now go to Ms. Vignola.
[Translation]

You have six minutes, Ms. Vignola.
Mrs. Julie Vignola: I want to thank you very much for all these

answers or, at least, the announcement of future research.

As soon as the crisis began, a 10% wage subsidy was announced.
Then there was the 75% Canada emergency wage subsidy. Does
that replace the 10% subsidy, or are these amounts complementary?
I'd like to have a better understanding of these two subsidies. To‐
gether, how much will these two subsidies ultimately cost?

[English]

Mr. Andrew Marsland: The first program, the Canada emer‐
gency wage subsidy, the 10% one, applies to all small businesses, at
least those businesses eligible for the small business deduction, as
well as charities and non-profit organizations. All of those busi‐
nesses are eligible for it. The mechanism of how that works is they
deduct that 10% from the amounts they would otherwise remit to
the Canada Revenue Agency on account of their employees' tax.
Let's just say, it's targeted at small businesses regardless of whether
or not they suffered a decline in revenues, but to help them manage
in this unprecedented crisis.

The 75% wage subsidy applies only to those firms that have suf‐
fered a 15% reduction in revenues from March 2019 to March
2020, or 30% in April. It's targeted at those corporations regardless
of their size, and charities and non-profits that have been specifical‐
ly affected. One is offset by the other, so the maximum is 75%. If a
small business is eligible for the 10% and the 75%, then the maxi‐
mum is the 75%. They complement each other, but they are applied
to different populations.

A projection of the cost estimate of the 75% wage subsidy is $73
billion over the course of the subsidy. We would reduce the esti‐
mate for the 10% wage subsidy when [Technical Difficulty—Edi‐
tor].

● (1515)

The Chair: Mr. Clerk, I cannot hear anything at all. Can we per‐
haps stop right here while our technicians take a look? If we can‐
not, then I would ask that Madame Vignola perhaps ask a question
to a different witness.

Mr. Andrew Marsland: I think it's working now.

Did you not hear any of my response?

The Clerk: We heard some. It got cut off near the end, unfortu‐
nately.

Mr. Andrew Marsland: Yes. Normally people look puzzled
when they can't hear me.

[Translation]

Mrs. Julie Vignola: We heard your answer up to the point where
you talked about the $73 billion. We didn't hear the rest.

[English]

Mr. Andrew Marsland: I apologize.
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The cost of the 75% wage subsidy is projected to be $73 billion.
The original cost of the 10% was over $4 billion, but we have re‐
duced that to $975 million because of the way the two measures
work together, and since you can't have both, the cost of the 10%
original wage subsidy has been reduced.

I hope that's clear.
[Translation]

Mrs. Julie Vignola: Yes, thank you.

I'll come back briefly to tax havens. From what I understand, we
don't have a clear list of Canadian companies that use tax havens,
which is unfortunate given the amounts invested in research in that
regard.

What is the estimated amount of money that we miss out on an‐
nually and doesn't end up in our coffers because of tax havens?
[English]

Mr. Andrew Marsland: First of all, I think the challenge is that
there is no kind of internationally accepted list regarding what is a
tax haven. There are lists that various international organizations
have established of non-co-operative jurisdictions, those that don't
meet the standards of transparency and so on. Those tend to be fair‐
ly short lists.

There are other perceptions of low-tax jurisdictions, which some
people might consider tax havens or which might be so called in
common parlance. There's no common terminology accepted
throughout the world as to what is a tax haven.

The Canada Revenue Agency has done estimates of the tax gap,
and I can undertake to ask my colleagues at the Canada Revenue
Agency to provide those. Those are not necessarily responsive to
your question entirely, because there are tax gaps on the corporate
side and so on that include more than just what one might consider
planning and tax havens.
● (1520)

[Translation]
Mrs. Julie Vignola: Okay.

Right now, the floodgates are open. In a way, we're managing to
borrow phenomenal amounts of money to help the public. We all
agree that the crisis can drag on.

What can we do to prevent a second wave?

If a second wave comes, will we be strong enough to help the
public as we are doing now?

How can we prevent that?
[English]

The Chair: Could we have another very brief answer if possible,
please?

Ms. Alison McDermott: Maybe I could attempt that one.

As you probably know, the decisions about the restart of the
economy are really being driven by health-based considerations,
and being made largely at the provincial level, so there's a great
deal of collaboration between those levels of government to try to

make sure those decisions are well supported and that we don't
have a resurgence.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

Mr. Green, you have six minutes.

Mr. Matthew Green: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

According to the Department of Finance's third biweekly report
on parts 3, 8 and 18 of Bill C-13, the estimated financial impact of
direct measures for individuals, businesses, tax liquidity support,
and other liquidity supports is around $586.5 billion.

How is the government financing all of these new benefits and
measures, and are they financed through short-term or long-term fi‐
nancial instruments?

Maybe Mr. Marsland, a tax policy guy, or somebody from the
Department of Finance could answer.

Ms. Leah Anderson: I can take that.

We work very closely with the Bank of Canada, which is our fis‐
cal agent, to issue government debt to finance the spending that is
occurring. The tenure of the debt falls across the different options
that we have, including T-bills of two years, five years and 30
years. We have calibrated that program appropriate to the response.

We certainly are benefiting from the extraordinarily low interest
rates that we're currently facing. Indeed, going into this crisis we
were in the best fiscal position of all the G7 countries, so we are
benefiting from that status as well.

Mr. Matthew Green: I'm certainly not an economist, but we're
hearing new theories, things that might not be traditional, like mod‐
ern monetary theories. Has there been any discussion around ways,
subsequent to Mrs. Vignola's point, that, if we see this again, we
certainly can, under the traditional framework, continue to borrow
in the way that we do? Have new fiscal theories been bandied about
or explored in your department?

Ms. Leah Anderson: Again, going back to how we went into
this crisis, we had very sound fiscal capacity, and we do work very
closely with the Bank of Canada to explore what the best opportu‐
nities are. In working with them and projecting out our financial re‐
quirements, we were able to develop a borrowing program that's
appropriate for Canada.

Mr. Matthew Green: In one of the earlier comments, and I can't
recall who to attribute it to, I heard about adding to the liquidity of
financial institutions. How much liquidity have we added to finan‐
cial institutions?

Ms. Leah Anderson: The Bank of Canada has launched a num‐
ber of facilities that enable what we call “repos” or the exchange of
securities for liquidity. All told, I think it was in the range of $550
billion.

Mr. Matthew Green: Just for the purpose of the viewers who
are out there, what does that look like? Is that a transfer from the
Bank of Canada to financial institutions to be able to provide them
with financial stability?
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Ms. Leah Anderson: It's not a transfer to the financial institu‐
tions; it's providing liquidity to the market. They have various secu‐
rities in their books, and they exchange them to the Bank of Canada
on a short-term basis, and they provide the liquidity.

Similarly, one of these measures is what we call the “domestic
stability buffer”. OSFI provided some capital relief to financial in‐
stitutions, and this freed up another $300 billion of liquidity for fi‐
nancial sector institutions to be able to provide credit to the econo‐
my for support at this time.
● (1525)

Mr. Matthew Green: At the risk of sounding really foolish, we
heard about, in the States in 2007, the process of quantitative eas‐
ing. Is that what you're doing, supporting the markets through this
process?

Ms. Leah Anderson: I wouldn't necessarily call it quantitative
easing. There are different strategies and approaches, but the facili‐
ties that we have do enable a greater liquidity.

An important thing was recently done with provincial govern‐
ments. As they're also issuing debt and going to the market in un‐
precedented times, the Bank of Canada launched a facility to pur‐
chase, on a temporary basis, some of their debt to, again, help with
the smooth functioning of the market. These are all very much
well-functioning market measures so that the market remains liquid
and available to provide credit to business at this time.

Mr. Matthew Green: I'm going to go back to a question I had in
the first round, which is this really interesting thing about establish‐
ing a corporation or an entity for the purposes of promoting stabili‐
ty in the financial system. Can you comment on that? What is the
purpose of the authority to establish a corporation?

Ms. Leah Anderson: This power, in fact, builds on a power that
was provided in the financial crisis, and the Minister of Finance,
during that time, was provided the authority to enter into a contract
with an entity to provide a loan, a line of credit or a guarantee to an
entity. In this very unprecedented time, and our being able to or
needing to be able to respond as required, as circumstances warrant,
it was deemed appropriate to not just make a guarantee, loan or
purchase an entity, but to create one through the government as an‐
other tool for financial stability if it's warranted in this time.

Mr. Matthew Green: Do the corporation letters patent of
Canada Post allow, through postal banking, for a similar process?

Ms. Leah Anderson: That's a different question. That's not relat‐
ed to this provision.

Mr. Matthew Green: Fair enough. Thank you very much. I'm
watching with interest, and I appreciate the fullness of your an‐
swers.

The Chair: Thank you very much.

We'll now go to the five-minute round of questions starting with
Mr. Aboultaif for five minutes, please.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Thank you very much.

My next question is on the CECRA program. The government
will put 50%, the landlord will put 25% and the business owner
will put 25%. It seems like the landlords are not participating or are
refusing to participate in the program. There are a lot of businesses

basically facing shutdown, and they cannot come up with the mon‐
ey. We've been receiving a lot of calls in that regard.

Was this program communicated to the real estate owners, the
landlords, before it came out? Was there any understanding of this
program coming to light so that at least we don't end up with a situ‐
ation that we're in right now?

Ms. Leah Anderson: The program is expected to launch in mid-
May. CMHC will be administering the program, and is working
carefully on the program parameters. We are hearing a lot from
both landlords and tenants about the operationalization of that pro‐
gram. We've heard from many landlords that they find it's a great
opportunity. Otherwise they would have been faced, perhaps, with
tenants being able to pay nothing, those who have been deemed
non-essential forced to close or have significant revenue decline.
They look at this as an opportunity to help weather this crisis.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: So when we're talking about the revenue
decline, you pick the 70% decline in business. How did you come
up with that figure? Why isn't it 60%? Why isn't it 65%, for exam‐
ple?

Ms. Leah Anderson: We wanted to make an amount that was
material but not zero, because if a company is facing zero non-es‐
sential for us to close, they might not be able to bridge the period.
So it's an assessment. If they face that amount of a drop they would
have more difficulty paying for that time, and with access to CE‐
BA, for example, would then also be able to pay their 25% of the
rent and be relieved of 75%.

● (1530)

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: So the 70% was not based on any econom‐
ic or financial measures. It just may be a number that sounds good.
Some businesses have lost more than 70%. Of course some of them
shut down completely. Some of them are still having some activity.

How much money did you think you would need to spend on this
program?

Ms. Leah Anderson: It will ultimately depend on take-up, but
we're estimating it will be approximately $2 billion in loans.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Is that on a monthly basis?

Ms. Leah Anderson: No, this is for the full program.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: And that considers how many months?

Ms. Leah Anderson: That's for three months.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Three months, $2 billion should be enough
to be able to serve this program. Is that correct?

Ms. Leah Anderson: That's our estimate, that it would be ap‐
proximately that amount.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: Okay. With commercial landlords, the ten‐
ant applies. Do they apply to CMHC? Where do they apply? Whom
do they need to convince in this fashion to be able to qualify?
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Ms. Leah Anderson: CMHC will be leading the delivery of the
program, and they'll release details about the interface to apply
once this becomes operational in the next couple of weeks. They've
set up a website where businesses can now get further information
on how they would apply.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: At this point, we don't know what the deal
is between CMHC and the landlords, do we?

Ms. Leah Anderson: The landlords would be in contact with
CMHC to avail themselves of this program.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: If the banks were called to deliver on that
program, would that be a better option?

Ms. Leah Anderson: Our assessment is that CMHC is well pre‐
pared to deliver this.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif: At this moment why is CMHC not getting
involved to solve the refusal of the landlords to adapt or work with
the program, and who's got the authority to ask CMHC to act ac‐
cordingly?

The Chair: Unfortunately once again we're completely out of
time. Ms. Anderson, or whoever has a response to Mr. Aboultaif,
please provide it in writing to our clerk, and then we can distribute
it to the committee.

Colleagues, we've got just over 10 minutes left.

As I mentioned, at 3:45 p.m. I'd like to excuse our witnesses so
we can then talk about the witnesses and the work plan and study
for the week of May 11. Therefore, we will have two more five-
minute interventions, starting with Mr. Kusmierczyk, followed by
Mrs. Block, and unfortunately, Mr. Jowhari, it looks like you've
drawn the short straw.

We have to adjourn our meeting at 4 p.m. sharp to allow the tech‐
nicians to prepare for the next meeting.

We'll go now to Mr. Kusmierczyk. You have five minutes,
please, sir.

Mr. Irek Kusmierczyk (Windsor—Tecumseh, Lib.): Thank
you very much, Chair.

Under normal times, thousands of Canadians who are on em‐
ployment insurance can also benefit from the supplemental unem‐
ployment benefit, SUB. That's basically a top-up provided by the
employer. It's a formal agreement between the employers, the
unions and the government as well. Currently, under the CERB the
SUBs are not permitted.

What is Finance's position on the issue of the supplemental un‐
employment benefits, and what are some of the key considerations?

Ms. Suzy McDonald: As you noted, the SUB plans are not be‐
ing used at the moment. Part of the reason for this is that we are not
using the EI system in the way it's traditionally been used. We have
moved people to applying for the CERB through the Canada Rev‐
enue Agency or through Service Canada, and moved into that
CERB usage instead of the EI system. As such, the idea here really
is to make sure that we are meeting the needs of Canadians in an
urgent time, suspending some of the ways in which EI has tradi‐
tionally worked.

I know that ESDC has had a number of conversations around the
SUB plan. They are the policy lead for this.

● (1535)

Mr. Irek Kusmierczyk: Thank you. I just wanted to know
whether Finance had any position or any considerations on this par‐
ticular issue. I'll move on to the next questions.

In terms of the CEWS, the wage subsidy program, can you tell
me how many employees are actually utilizing this program? As
well, what impact will this have on our ability to recover once the
economy is opened up?

Mr. Andrew Marsland: I would prefer to consult with my col‐
leagues at the CRA, as these numbers change all the time in terms
of how many employees. I believe the last number I saw was 1.7
million, but I will get back to you. The program just opened for ap‐
plications last Monday. It changes all the time. Perhaps I can com‐
mit to getting back to the committee with an update. It will be out
of date, unfortunately, as soon as I give it to you, but I can give you
the newest information.

The second part of your question is an important one. It goes to
the heart and the purpose of the program, which is to encourage
employers to retain, to rehire and to avoid layoffs in order to be po‐
sitioned to restart things as quickly as possible and preserve that
productive capacity in the economy. That's really the objective of
the measure. We think it will be an important contributor toward re‐
covery.

Mr. Irek Kusmierczyk: Great. Thank you.

The Canadian Federation of Independent Business did a survey
of about 8,000 of its members. It found that about a third of its
membership will have a shortfall of about $10,000 in the next 30
days. That's when they take into consideration all the government
benefits and all the revenue they're bringing in, obviously minus all
the costs they're facing.

What indicators are we looking at to see whether the programs as
designed are actually working, and specifically in the case of some
of the programs directed at businesses?

Mr. Andrew Marsland: That's an excellent question. I think we
have been operating very much in real time in terms of developing
these programs as the situation has developed. We are looking at
take-up, obviously. We're looking at the feedback we get. We speak
to a lot of associations and companies to understand exactly how
these programs are working for them. There have been adjustments.
While I can't speculate on the future, I think we'll continue to con‐
sider whether adjustments are required.

Clearly, we're tracking very closely the take-up of these pro‐
grams. We are engaging with the finance committee on almost a
weekly basis, if not every two weeks. I think we'll continue to track
and look at the data and, importantly, seek input from Canadians
across the country.

The Chair: Thank you very much.
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Mrs. Block, you have five minutes.
Mrs. Kelly Block: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

I have one really quick question in follow-up to the previous
questions I was asking. I think it was Ms. McDermott who was an‐
swering my question.

I want a really short answer about the generous package you've
referenced, which was announced to address what we are experi‐
encing with COVID-19. Was that meant to be a medium-term solu‐
tion, a long-term solution or a short-term solution?

Ms. Alison McDermott: I think it's short- to medium-term in the
sense that some of those measures will have a duration of a few
months. Do you want me to talk—

Mrs. Kelly Block: Thank you. That answers my question.

I want to turn the rest of my time over to my colleague Mr. Mc‐
Cauley. I echo his concerns around some of the industries he was
asking about, in terms of some sort of package for them. Could I do
that, Mr. Chair?
● (1540)

The Chair: Certainly.

Mr. McCauley, you have the remaining time, approximately four
minutes.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Great. Thank you, Mrs. Block.

With respect to Finance, 40 days ago now, of course, Finance
Minister Morneau announced that support for the energy industry
was “hours, possibly days away”. Now, we saw a small bit for the
cleanup of wells, which is not going to help the overall industry.
When are we actually going to see a support package for the vital
oil and gas industry?

Governor Poloz from the Bank of Canada noted it's going to be
one of the main driving factors leading us into recovery, but it has
to exist if it's actually going to help Canada recover.

When are we going to see the support package promised by Mr.
Morneau? If you don't have an answer precisely, please just state
that and we'll move on to other questions.

Ms. Evelyn Dancey: On energy support, the announcement of
April 17, in addition to the wells and the emissions fund, there was
also a reference to new financing products to be offered by Export
Development Canada and the Business Development Bank of
Canada. They are a specific response to the particular financing
challenges in the energy sector—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Is that the extent of it, then, or will there
be more coming?

Ms. Evelyn Dancey: The government's response has been itera‐
tive, and so it is believed that these instruments will be very rele‐
vant, again, for the vast number of companies in the sector. These
are mid-sized companies with larger financing needs than had pre‐
viously been addressed under BCAP.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: When he said “hours, possibly days”, he's
referring now to the April 17 announcement. Thanks.

Let me just ask you, please, to Finance, with the recent drop of
interest rates and obviously the change to the discount rate, how

much higher are we going to see the deficit this year because of the
change for the discount rates with the public service pensions?

Ms. Alison McDermott: As mentioned, we will be providing a
fiscal update at some time in the near future, but we can't give you
details on that yet. At that time, when we come out with either an
update or a budget, you'll have detailed information on those fore‐
casts.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Okay. Has finance looked at the issues of
the unfunded liabilities of any of the public service pension funds,
for example, the public service investment board or Canada Post,
the issues with their unfunded liabilities? I'm sure they're going to
get slammed even more with the drop in the equity markets.

Ms. Alison McDermott: Yes, many of those have been affected
by equity market changes recently. I don't have that at my disposal,
but we have been in touch. My understanding is that we are not do‐
ing too badly. We'll see if we come back with information for the
[Inaudible—Editor]

Mr. Kelly McCauley: You're breaking up too much. Could
someone else answer the question? Is that something you can get
back to the committee on?

Ms. Alison McDermott: Yes. We'll see if we can come back to
you with some more details on that.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Okay.

As for the hidden, so to speak, debt of the Crown corporations,
which is generally not announced when we talk about the overall
public debt, how is that changing from pre-COVID to the current
situation? Obviously, they're getting hit, whether on pensions or
VIA taking a big revenue hit. How large is the increase in the
Crown corp debt that we're seeing year over year?

The Chair: I apologize. It seems that we never have enough
time to fully get questions and answers on the record, so we ask
whoever wishes to address Mr. McCauley's question to provide an
answer in writing to our clerk so that we can submit that answer to
our committee members.

With that, I will now thank and excuse all of our witnesses while
the rest of the committee sticks around to deal with some commit‐
tee business. I remind all committee members that we will be in
public.

Once again, to the TBS and Department of Finance officials,
thank you very much. You are excused.

Colleagues, the purpose of this, is to talk about the witnesses
coming the week of May 11, which is next week.

May 11 from 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. will be the first meeting

Friday, May 15 from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. will be the second
meeting. All times are eastern.

I would ask Raphaëlle—if you want—to start with a précis of the
work plans that we have established so far, and then we can ask
committee members if they have any additional witnesses they
wish to suggest.
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Raphaëlle.
● (1545)

Ms. Raphaëlle Deraspe (Committee Researcher): Yes, thank
you, Mr. Chair.

What we suggest for next week is the fifth meeting on the deliv‐
ery of emergency benefits, and that would be with both Minister
Qualtrough and Minister Lebouthillier.

Then, for Friday, we suggest meeting number six on the national
emergency strategic stockpile and federal procurement. That would
be with representatives from PHAC and PSPC.

The Chair: Now we'll just go straight into comments or obser‐
vations from any committee members.

Mr. McCauley.
Mr. Kelly McCauley: Thanks, Raphaëlle. I appreciate that.

For the one with PSPC, is Mr. Matthews included in that? I know
we requested to have him back.

Ms. Raphaëlle Deraspe: Yes, there will be Mr. Matthews and
also Ms. Arianne Reza from PSPC.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I think we should also ask the minister to
come back to answer these pressing questions in regard to some of
the issues with Amazon and Canada Post, as well as the flip-flop‐
ping of the department on some of the PPE issues that were an‐
swered here and then contradicted in the House, contradicted by
Mr. Matthews, and then contradicted again by her press secretary.

Ms. Raphaëlle Deraspe: If I may, Mr. Chair, I would just like to
clarify that Mr. McCauley would like the Minister of PSPC, Minis‐
ter Anand.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: That's correct, thank you.
Mr. Steven MacKinnon (Gatineau, Lib.): How is this supposed

to roll out, Chair? I know that Minister Lebouthillier is coming.
What do the next three or four meetings look like?

The Chair: The work plan has been submitted to all committee
members—

Mr. Steven MacKinnon: Yes, I apologize; I know it has. I'm
staring at your face as opposed to it.

The Chair: Oh, that's why.

As we all know, the committees are masters of their own agen‐
das. Should there be subsequent or additional witnesses we haven't
even considered yet that the committee would like to invite, based
on testimony that we're about to hear or yet to hear, we can certain‐
ly continue the study as long as we wish.

I'm just suggesting that at this point in time at least, if there are
no objections, we'll continue with the meeting work plan that
Raphaëlle and the other analysts have suggested. Should a commit‐
tee member want to take 10 or 15 minutes at the end of a meeting
to discuss additional witnesses and future work and studies, we can
certainly do that. I look at this as a very fluid, ongoing study that
may have several other elements the further we get along into it.

At this point in time, I think all that we have to go on, col‐
leagues, is the work plan that has already been presented to all of

you. If there are other comments on that, or suggestions on how we
can proceed, I'd love to hear them.

Mr. Francis Drouin: Chair, I have a quick comment on priori‐
tizing our witnesses. I don't have an issue with reinviting some of
the witnesses, but I would first like to hear from those we haven't
had the opportunity to hear from. Then, if we do feel that we need
to hear from other witnesses for a second time, and perhaps a third
or fourth time, we can surely send out another invitation.

My second comment has to do with the work that other commit‐
tees are also doing. I think all of us here have expressed some con‐
cerns. We just don't want to be redundant in terms of what the other
committees are doing. I would defer to the analysts to say which
particular witnesses have been heard at some other committee, un‐
less it was a month and a half ago or something. Then, perhaps
there's value in having them in front of our committee. However, in
the spirit of redundancy, I would say, let's hear from those who
haven't had the opportunity to come forward yet.

The Chair: Francis, I agree, particularly with your initial com‐
ment about prioritizing those ministers who have not appeared be‐
fore this committee yet. With regard to those committee members
who wish to see a minister reappear, we could perhaps put those ap‐
pearances off until further down the line.

I also agree with your comments.

Raphaëlle, this is perhaps dumping a bit much on your plate and
Ryan's plate, but could you take a look at some of the other com‐
mittees that are currently meeting and do a quick overview of the
witnesses and some of the people they're bringing forward, and rec‐
ommend to our committee, then, if there are any witnesses who
would perhaps be redundant? We don't want to have meetings just
for the sake of having a meeting. If we don't have to hear witnesses
who have already provided testimony in other settings, I think that
would probably be the wise course of action. Having said that, if
there are witnesses we have not heard from yet and committee
members think they would be vital to our study, let's get those
names in as quickly as we can to our clerk and our analysts.

Mr. McCauley, go ahead.

● (1550)

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I appreciate Mr. Drouin's comment; I
don't want us to meet just for the sake of meeting. That being said, I
would like us to take a look at it before we zap anyone as duplicat‐
ing.

We saw today in committee that Ms. Ratansi brought up great
questions about the CEBA that had been brought up repeatedly at
other committees where they've just been sloughed off.

Even if they've appeared in another committee, I think it would
still be valuable to have them before us to explain what they're do‐
ing during this crisis, hold their feet to the fire if necessary. I'd hate
to dismiss anyone just because they've appeared somewhere else.

The Chair: That's a point well taken, Mr. McCauley.
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From my observation, I guess it's simply that if we have witness‐
es who can add something and provide new testimony to this com‐
mittee, I'm all for it. If we're hearing the same old same old testimo‐
ny, having the same answers we've heard in the finance committee
or perhaps other committees, then I'm not sure how productive and
useful that would be for this committee.

Again, I'm certainly at the will of this committee as it sees fit.
Mr. Kelly McCauley: I'd like us to have a look before we decide

to scratch someone's name off just because they've appeared else‐
where.

The Chair: That's a point well taken.

Raphaëlle, could that be part of your task, to take a look at the
witnesses who have appeared at other committees and make a de‐
termination, if possible, to see if any of that would be considered
new and helpful information for our committee's study? Then we
can go ahead and do that scheduling.

Mr. Clerk.
The Clerk: If I may, Mr. Chair, to ensure that I am understand‐

ing what the committee wants, we will proceed with the fifth and
sixth meetings as outlined on the work plan of April 28. The fifth
meeting will be Minister Qualtrough, Minister Lebouthillier, and
officials from the Canada Revenue Agency. The sixth meeting will
have representatives from the PHAC, the Public Health Agency of
Canada, in addition to Bill Matthews and Arianne Reza.

There was also a proposition from Mr. McCauley that the Minis‐
ter of Public Services and Procurement be reinvited. I don't know
whether that's for that sixth meeting or not.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: We can do it further down the road.
The Chair: Paul, if we're having another minister appear, why

don't we then do that at a separate meeting rather than putting them
in with the meetings next Friday?

The Clerk: The meetings for next Friday were already decided
on; I'm talking about the week after that. The fifth meeting here
would be for May 11; the sixth meeting that I'm detailing would be
for May 15. There are two ministers invited for May 11, according
to the work plan, and at the sixth meeting, which would take place
on May 15, there is no minister invited but there are two represen‐
tatives from PSPC.

The Chair: Mr. McCauley, since we are having witnesses from
PSPC on May 15, are you suggesting we have the minister appear
on May 15?

Mr. Kelly McCauley: No, because I think PSPC is appearing
with PHAC.

Did I hear that right, Mr. Clerk?
The Clerk: Yes, PHAC.
Mr. Kelly McCauley: I think they should probably be separate

so that there's proper time.
● (1555)

The Chair: Okay. In that case we will defer it.

Mr. MacKinnon.
Mr. Steven MacKinnon: I'm not sure I understand the reason

for this. To examine the procurement of PPE, why would we want
the deputy minister and the minister of the department, who are
both coming for a second time, incidentally, to appear separately
before this committee? Either we have them together or.... I don't
understand at all the rationale for doing two separate sessions.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I think Mr. Matthews is more for some of
the specifics of PPE. If you want to bring [Inaudible—Editor] at the
same time, then if necessary we'll bring them back a third time. I
just have great concerns that we will use up time discussing the na‐
tional stockpile, which we're talking about that day, or other issues
and get tied up. I'd like some clearer answers from the minister
specifically on some of the back and forth, as they're contradicting
themselves, and clear messaging, whether it's on Amazon or some‐
thing else.

I don't think we'll get that all in a one-hour meeting with Mr.
Matthews and the minister, which is why I'm suggesting a separate
one.

The Chair: Colleagues, I can make a suggestion. We have a
work plan that takes us until May 15. Under the original parliamen‐
tary calendar, we were not sitting the week of May 18. However,
that old calendar is out the window and my understanding is there
will be virtual parliamentary meetings as well as in-person meet‐
ings the week of May 18. Since it is apparent—to me at least—that
this study will continue for the foreseeable future, I suggest we de‐
fer inviting the minister to come back, as Mr. McCauley suggested,
until after May 15. Then during the week of May 11, I will sched‐
ule some time at either one or both of our two meetings for com‐
mittee business and we can talk about the plans for subsequent
weeks.

How is that?

An hon. member: It's good.
The Clerk: Mr. Chair, the proposal is to invite the witnesses out‐

lined in the fifth and sixth meetings on the work plan. If that's what
the committee wants to decide on, it really should be, according to
the order of the House, a recorded division.

Do you wish me to proceed with that question for the committee
to vote on now?

The Chair: Yes, please, Paul. You're quite right. Procedurally,
we do have to have a recorded division on this.

(Motion agreed to: yeas 10; nays 0 [See Minutes of Proceed‐
ings])

The Chair: Thank you.

Colleagues, seeing that it is 3:59 and our technicians have asked
us to adjourn at 4 p.m. sharp, I thank you all for your contributions.

We are adjourned.
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